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On Apnil 1, 2004, Planti(f, Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“Comnussion”),
filed a Complaint against Defendants Equity Financial Group, LLC (“Equity™), Tech Traders,
Inc., Vincent J. Firth (“Firth™) and Robert W. Shimer (“Shimer™) secking injunctive and other
cquitable relicf for violations of the Commodity Exchange Act, as amended (“Act”),
7US.C 88 1 el seq. (2002), and the Commussion Regulations promulgated thereunder,

17 CEFR. §§ 1 ctscq. (2004). Pursuant to Court Order, the Commission filed a First Amended
Complaint on August 12, 2004 against the previously named Defendants and, additionally,
against Tech Traders, Lid., Magnum Tnvesiments, Tid., Magnum Capital Investments, Ltd., Coyt
E. Murray (“Murray™) and J. Vemon Abemethy (“Abemethy™). The Court entered a Consent
Order of Prelimimary Injunction and Other Ancillary Relief against Abernethy on Avgust 23,
2004.

I. Consent And Agreement
1. To effect seitlement of the matiers alleged in the Complaint against Defendant
Abcrnethy, without a trtal on the merits or any further judicial proccedings, and without
admitling or denying the allegations of the First Amended Complaint, or the findings in this
Consent Order of Permancent Injunction and Other Equitable Relief ("Order”), Abemethy
congents to the entry of this Order. Abcemethy consents to the use by the CFTC of the findings
herein in this proceeding and in any other proceeding brought by the CFTC or to which the
CFIC is a party. Abemethy does not consent to the use of this Order, or the findings of fact or
conclusions of law, as the sole basis for any other proceeding brought by the CETC; cxcept that
he consents to any use in any proceeding to enforce or to effectuate the terms of this Order
including use by the Commission or any person identilied in this Order under Ruie 71 Fed. R.

Civ. P.as having rights under this Order, in any bankruptcy proceeding brought by or against
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him. With respect to bankruptey proceedings, Abemethy agrees to except the restitution
obhgations set forth in this Order (rom discharge. Solely with respect to any such bankruptey
proceeding or any procceding to cnforce this Order, Abemethy agrees that the allegations of the
First Amended Complaint and the findings in this Order shall be taken as true and correct and be
givcn pr;tclu sive cffect, without further proof.
2. Abermnethy affirms that he has agreed to this Order voluntarly, and that no promise or
threat has been made by the CEFTC or any member, officer, agent or representative thereof, or by
any other person, to induce consent to this Order, other than as set forth specifically herein.
3. Abernethy acknowledges service of the Summons and the First Amended Complaint.
4. Abernethy admits the jurisdiction of this Court over him, admits that the Court has
subject matter jurisdiction over this action, and admits that venue properly lies with this Court
pursuant to Section 6c of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2002).
5. Abcrncthy waives:
(a) all claims which he may posscss under the Cqual Access to Justice Act,
5 US.C8 504 (2000), and 28 U.S.C. § 2412 (2000), relating to, or ansing from, this action;
(b} any claim of double jeopardy based upon the institution of this proceeding or the
entry in this proceeding of any order imposing a civil monctary penalty or any other relief; and
(c) all rights of appeal from this Order.
6. No provigion of this Qrder shall in any way limit or impair the ability of any person to
seek any legal or equitable remedy against Abernethy or any other person in any other
procceding, including any currcnt or subscquent bankruptcy.
7. Abemethy agrees that neither he nor any of his agents or employees acting under his

authority or control shall takc any action or makc any public statement denying, directly or
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indircetly, any allcgation in the First Amended Complaint or findings or conclusions in this
Order, or creating, or tending to create, the imipresston that the First Amended Complaint or this
Order is without  factual basis; provided, however, that nothing in this provision shall affect
Abemethy’s: 1) testimonial obligations; or it) nights 1o take legal positions in other proccedings
to which the CFTC is not a party. Abernethy shall take all nceessary steps to ensure that all of
s agents and employees understand and comply with this agreement.
8. Abernethy agrees to cooperate with staft of the Commission in the contimuing
litigation of this matter. (As part of such cooperation, Abernethy agrees, subject to all
apphcable privileges, o comply fully, promptly, and truthfully to any inquirics or requests for
mformation or testimony, including but not limited to; (1) authenticating documents; (2)
responding to requests for production of documents concerning this matter within Abemethy’s
possession, custody, or control, and permitting Commission staff 1o inspect and copy such
documents; (3) testilying completely and truthfully in this action and producing statements to
the Commission, interviews, depositions, or testimony, and to provide testimony (including
witness preparation) related to any trial the subject matter of this proceeding,
9. Abemethy consents to the contimued junisdiction of this Court for the purposé of
enforcing the terms and conditions of this Order and for any other purposes relevant to this case.
II. Findings
The Court makes the following findings of fact:
i. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 6¢ of the Commodity
Exchange Act ("Act™), 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2002).
2. Venue properly lics with this Court pursuant to Section 6c¢ie) of the Act, 7 U.5.C.

§ 13a-1(¢), becanse Defendant Aberncthy 18 found in, inhabits, or transacts business, among
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other places, in this district, and the acts and practices m violation of the Act have occurred, are
occurring, or are about to occur, among 0fhcr places, within this distriet.

3. Corporations A through D) (collectively referred to as “Corporation A”) and their
principal Individual A operated a so-called “super {und™ or master pool of one or more
commodity pools. Corporation A and Individual A falsely represented to investors in this “super
fund™ that Corporation A cnjoyed extraordinary success trading in selected financial fulures
contracts using a confidential, proprietary “porifolio” trading system.

4. Corporation A and Individual A engaged Abernethy as an allegedly independent certificd
public accountant (“CPA™) to provide a monthly and quarterly performance number for the
“supcrfund” bascd on “reviewed” and “verified™ trading results. Abemethy prepared monthly
and quarterly 1'6130i15 showing that Corporation A enjoyed trading gams from at least Junc 2001
through February 2004, knowing that the reports were falsc and that such reports would be
provided to prospective and actual participants whom Abemethy knew or shoald have known
would rely upon not only the information included, but also the fact that it had been reviewed
and venfied bj,r an mdependent CPA.

5. All of the participants in the “superfund™ did rely upon the monthly and quarterly
performance humber Abcrncthy provided in deciding to participate or continue to participate in
the “superfund.” Tn reliance on such monthly and quarterly performance numbers, at least 40
participants have lost at least $5 million.

6. Abernethy undertook a faulty agreed-upon procedures engagement which was not
consistent with professional standards, was not independent, did not review ail the trading, did
not take any steps to “ven{y” anything, and reported materially inaceurate performance gains,

despite possessing documents that disclosed huge trading losses.
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7. Abemethy also solicited al least 10 pool participants for Corporation A and Shasta
(Capital Associates, L.L.C. (“Shasta™), a commodity pool that invested in the “super fund”™
without being registered to do so using the performance results from the reports he preparcd.
Abcrncthy knew that these same performance results were featured in solicitations by
Corporation A, lndividuat A, and Corporation F, the commodity pool operator that ran Shasta,
and Individuals B and C, the control persons of Corporation F. He also knew that these same
perlormance results were false and that they were used to prepare stalements sent to pool
participants.
1. CONCLUSTONS OF LAW

1. From at least June 2001 1o April 2004, Aberncthy employed devices, schemes or artifices
to defraud clients or prospective clients, and cngaged in transactions, praclices or courses of
business which operated as a fraud or deceit upon clients or prospective clicnts, in violation of
Section 4o(1) of the Act, 7US.C. § 60(l ).

2. During the relevant time period, Abemelhy was associated with Corporation A and
Corporation E as a partncr, officer, cmployee, consultant, or agent (or in a similar status), in a
capacily tha involved the solicitation of funds, securitics or property for participation n

Corporation A and Corporation E, in viclation of Section 4k (2) of the Act, 7 U.5.C. § 6k(2)

(2002).
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V. ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that:

1. Abemethy and all persons insofar as they are acting in the capacity of his agents,

servants, emplovees and attomeys, and all persons insofar as they are acting in concert or

participation with hiny, are permanently restrained, enjoined and prohibited from directly or

indirectly:

B

C.

In the capacity of a commodity trading advisor or commodity pool operator,
or associated person of a commodity trading advisor or commodity pool
opcrator, by usc of the mails or any means or mstrumentahiy of interstate
commerce, cmploying any device, scheme or artifice to defraud any chent or
participani or progpective client or participant or engaging in any
transaction, practice, or course of busingss which operates as a fraud or
deceit upon any client or participant or prospective client or participant, in
violation of Section 4e(1) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6a(1), including but not
limited to the activities descnibed in paragraphs I1.3 through 117 above;

Assoctating with a commodity pool operator, as a partner, officer, employee,
consultant, or agent (or acting in a similar status or performing similar
functions), in a capacity that involves the solicitation of funds, secunties or
property for participation in a commodity pool or supervising any person 50
engaged without the benefit of registration in violation of Section 4k(2) of
the Act, 7 TU.5.C. § 6k(2);

Engaging in, controlling, dirceting or aceepting funds for the trading for any
commodity futures or options accounts for or on behalf of any other persen
or entity, whether by power of attorney or otherwise;

Entering into any commaodity {uturcs or options transactions for his own
account, for any accounts in which he has a direct or indircct interest and/or
having anv commeodity futures or options traded on his behalf;

Introducing customers to any other person engaged m the business of trading
in commodity futurcs and options;

Otherwise cngaging in any busincss activitics related to commodity futures
and options trading that rcquire registration; and.
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(G, Applying for registration or claiming exemption from registration with the

Commission m any capacity, and cogaging in any activity requiring such
registration or exemption from regisiration, except as provided for in
Scction 4.14(a}9) of the Commission’s Regulations, 17 C.FR, § 4.14(a)(9),
or acting, directly or indirectly, as a principal, agent, ot any other ofticer,
agent or employee of any person registered, required to be registered, or
exempted from registration with the Commission, unless such cxemption is
pursuant to Scction 4.14(a)(9) of the Commussion’s Regulations, 17 C.F.R. §
4.14(a)(9).

2. This Court also orders, and Defendant agrees to, the Defendant’s performance of the

following undertakings:

A, Not to practice before the Commission as an accountant for a penod of len
(10) years [ollowing entry of this Order;

B. Not lo accepl any engagement that involves the review or analysis of
commodity pool slatements; and

(. Not to accept any engagement that involves the analysis of futures or
options statements.

V. ORDER FOR OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT:
1. Upon cntry of this Order, Aberncthy is jointly and severally liable for and a judgment 1s
entered against him in the amount of $35,000,000 as restitution (“Restitution Amount.”)
Abermnethy 1s jointly and severally liable up to the amount of $5, 000,000 with any of the
Defendants in this case who are found by settlement or after judgment to be jointly and severally
liable to the pool participants whose claims are allowed in the claims process cstablished by the
Equity Recciver appointed by the Court in this casc. No prejudgment interest is ordered.
However, post-judgment nterest shall acerue commencing on the date this Order is signed and
continue until the Restitution Amount is paid in full. Post-judgment interest shall be paid al the
post-judgment interest rate set {orth in 28 U.S.C. § 1961, Aberncthy agrecs to a finding in the

bankruptcy proceeding that this restitution obligation is excepted from discharge. All payments
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made pursuant 1o this Order by Abemethy shall first be paid to the Receiver for further
distribution to claimants whose claims arc allowed in the claims process. After the terminabtion
of the Recervership, restitution shall be made on a pro rata basis according o the Final Order of
Distribution to claimants with allowed claims until those amounts (including interest) are fully
satisfied. All payments afler satisfaction ol the restitution shall be applicd to the civil monetary
amount described below.,
2. Pursuant to Rule 71 of the Federal Rules ol Civil Procedure, cach.pool participant listed
on the Final Order of Distribution 1s explicttly made an intended third-party beneliciary of this
Order and may, after termination of the Receivership, seek to enforce obedience of this Order to
obtain satisfaction of any portion of the restitution which has not been paid by Abemethy.

B. Civil Monetary Penalty

1. Upon catry of this Order, Abernethy is liable for and a judgment is entered
agamst him for a civil monetary penalty of $300,000, plus post-judgment interest. Post judgment
interest shall aceruc commencing on the date this Order is signed and continue until the civil
monctary penalty s paid in {ull. Postjudgment interest shall be paid at the post-judgment
mterest rate set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 1961. Abemethy shall pay such civil monelary penalty and
interest by electronic funds transfer, or by U.S. postal money order, certified check, bank
cashicr’s check, or bank money order, made pavable to the Commodity F uturcs Trading
Commission, and sent to Dennese Posey, or her successor, Division of Enforcement, Commaodity
Futures Trading Commission, Three Lafayette Centre, 1155 21st Strect, N.W., Washington, D.C.
20581, under cover of a letter that 1dentifies Abernethy and the name and docket number of the
proceeding; Abemethy shall simultancously transmit a copy of the cover letter and the form of

payment to the Dhrector, Division of Enforcement, Commodity Futures Trading Commission, at
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the following address: 1155 21st Street, NW, Washinglon, D.CC. 20581,

2. Any acceptance by the CFTC ol partial payment from Abemethy ol Abernethy’s
restitution and/or civil monetary obligations shall not be deemed a waiver of Abernethy’s
obligation to make further payments pursuant to this Order, or a walver of the CFTC’s nght to
seek to compel payment from Abemethy of any remaiming balance.

3. Abernethy shall immediately notify the CI'T'C if he makes or has previously made
any agreement with any customer obligating him o make payments outside of this Order. He
shall also provide immediate evidence to the CFTC of any payments made pursuant to such
agreement.  Aberncthy shall also notify the CFTC of any federal or state civil or criminal action
related to the same activitics that arc the subjcct of this action.

4, All notices required by this Order shall identi(y this matter by caption and shall be
seni by certified mail, return receipt requested, as {ollows:

Noticc to CFTC:

Dircetor, Division of Enforcemaent
Commodity Futures Trading Commission
1155 2151 St NW

Washington, DC 20581

Notice to Abcrncthy:

I. Vemon Abemethy

100 Glenway St

#K

Belmont, NC 28012

5. In the event that Abernethy changes his residential or business telephone
number(s) and/or address(es) at any time, he shall provide wrilten notice of the new numbcr(s)
and/or address(es) 10 the CFTC within twenty (20) calendar days thercof,

6. The imunctive provisions of this Order shall be binding on Abernethy, upon any

person insofar as he or she is acting in the capacity of officer, agent, servant, employee or

10
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attommey of Abemethy, and upon any person who reccives actual notice ol this Order by personal
service, facsimile or otherwise insofar ag he or she is acting In aclive concert or participation
with Abcrncthy,

7. This Order incorporates all of the teems and conditions of the scttlement among
the parties hereto. Nothing shall serve to amend or modify this Order in any respect whatsocver,
unless: (1) reduced to writing; (2) signed by all parties hereto; and (3) approved by order of this
Court.

8. The faiture of any party to this Order to require performance of any provision of
this Order shall in no manner affect the right of such parly at a later time to enforce the same or
any other provision of this Order. No waiver in onc or more instances of the breach of any
provision contained in this Order shall be construed as a further or continuing waiver of a breach
of any other provision of this Order.

9. This Court shall retain jurisdiction of this cause to assurc compliance with this
Consent Order and for all purposes related to this action, including securing additional funds or
property from third parties for satisfaction of Abernethy’s obligations for restitution and payment

of his civil monetary penalty.

ITTS SO ORDERED

Dated:ywdry 7, 2006 TN AN

United Stated Distriet Court Judge

L
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CONSENTED TOQ AND APEROYED BY: Ww

1. Vérfon Ahcrmthy
100 Glenway St
#1K

Belmant, NC 28012
(704) 865-4553
(704) 616-9494 (ccll)

Defendant, pro se

Datcd: f/—'fﬁ/"ﬂé .

l':llzabéth M. Streit
Lead Triat Attorney

Scott R. Williamson
Deputy Regional Counsel

COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING COMMISSION
525 West Monroc, Suite 1100

Chicago, IL 60661

(312) 596-0537 (Streit)

(312) 5396-0714 (facsimile)

Attorneys for Plaintiff

12
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned non-attomey, Venice Bickham, does hereby certify that on
June 26, 2006 she causcd a true and correet copy of the foregoing [Proposed] Consent Order of
Permanent Injunction and Other Ancillary Relict Against Defendant J. Vernon Abemethy to be
served upon the following persons via first class mal:

On behalf of Coyt E. Murray, Tech Bina Sanghavi
Traders, Inc., Tech Traders, Ltd., Sachnofl & Weaver, Ltd.
Magnum Investments, Ltd., and 10 S. Wacker Drive, 40" Floor
Magnum Capital Investments, Lid. Chicago, TL 60606-7484
Mclvyn J. Falis bsanghavi@sachnoff.com
Martin H. Kaplan
Gusrae, Kaplan, Brano & Nusbaum, PLLC On behalf of Equity Financial Group,
120 Wall Street Samuel Aberncthy
New York, NY 10005 Paul Hellegers
mkaplan(@gkblaw.com Menaker and Hermann
mfalis@gkblaw.com | 10 E. 40" St., 43" Floor

New York, NY 10014
Defendant J. Vernon Abernethy, pro se SFA@mbhjur.com
I. Vernon Abemnethy
0428 Wilkinson Boulevard #148 Defendant Robert W. Shimer, pro se
Belmont, NC 28012 Robert W, Shimer
jvabernethy@msn.com 1225 West Leesport Rd

Lecsport, Pennsylvania 19533
Receiver rshimer{@enter.net
Stephen T. Bobo
Sachnoff & Weaver, Ltd. Defendant Vincent J. Firth, pro se
10 S. Wacker Drive, 40" Floor Vincent J. Firth
Chicago, IL. 60606-7484 3 Aster Court
sbobo(@sachnoff.com Medford, NI 08055

triadcapital@comcast net

/ 7/%%@ oo

Venice Bickham, Paralegal Specialist




